
City Council Meeting Agenda 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room (Council) and Evans Room (Public) 

Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Parks and Recreation Matt Bates. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Jeff Miller, Pastor of the First United 
Methodist Church. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

Fire Chief Appointment 

3. Confirm the City Manager’s appointment of the Fire Chief, in accordance with
Chapter 143.013(a)(1) of the Texas Local Government Code.

Consent Agenda 

Items 4-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of the May 12, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 
5. Consider authorizing the purchase and installation of HVAC units for City facilities as 

provided for in the HVAC Replacement Fund. 
 
6. Consider authorizing: 
 

A. the Belton Economic Development Corporation Executive Director to execute a 
contract for the purchase of 2.833 acres at 2238 W. Hwy 190; and 
 

B. a budget amendment to the FY2020 budget in the amount of $165,000 for the 
purchase of property at 2238 W. Hwy 190. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to 

Multi-Family District on approximately 1.65 acres located at 6201 W. US 190 Service 
Road, on the south side of US 190, between US 190 and Dog Ridge Road, east of 
Fort Road. 
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of North Wall Street Addition, a replat 
of Belton Original Town, Block 63, eastern half of Lot 5, comprising 1.491 acres, to 
create five lots at 1000-1022 N. Wall Street, at the northwest corner of N. Wall Street 
and E. 10th Avenue, extending between E. 10th Avenue and the railroad tracks. 

 
9. Consider a final plat of Wheats Sweets Plaza, comprising approximately 3.0 acres 

located at 3050 W. Hwy 190 Service Road and 1174 S. Wheat Road, near the 
northwest corner of the intersection of US190/I-14 and Wheat Road. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the Liberty Hill Lift 

Station Offload project, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to 
exceed the amount authorized under State law.  

 
11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to implement or continue various utility 

assistance programs for those City of Belton utility billing customers who have been 
seriously impacted by the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room (Council) and Evans Room (Public) 

Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Parks and Recreation Matt Bates. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Jeff Miller, Pastor of the First United 
Methodist Church. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Fire Chief Appointment 
 
3. Confirm the City Manager’s appointment of the Fire Chief, in accordance with 

Chapter 143.013(a)(1) of the Texas Local Government Code. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

City Manager Sam Listi will be announcing his appointment of Jonathon Fontenot 
as Belton Fire Chief, and will ask the Council to confirm the appointment. 
Confirmation is required by Local Government Code Chapter 143 for cities with 
voter-approved Civil Service departments. An inauguration ceremony will be held 
on June 15, 2020. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 4-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
4. Consider minutes of the May 12, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 
5. Consider authorizing the purchase and installation of HVAC units for City 

facilities as provided for in the HVAC Replacement Fund. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend 
approval of the purchase/installation as presented. 

 
6. Consider authorizing: 
 

A. the Belton Economic Development Corporation Executive Director to 
execute a contract for the purchase of 2.833 acres at 2238 W. Hwy 190; and 
 

B. a budget amendment to the FY2020 budget in the amount of $165,000 for 
the purchase of property at 2238 W. Hwy 190. 

 
See Staff Report from BEDC Executive Director Cynthia Hernandez. Recommend 
approval of the purchase contract and budget amendment. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District 

to Multi-Family District on approximately 1.65 acres located at 6201 W. US 190 
Service Road, on the south side of US 190, between US 190 and Dog Ridge 
Road, east of Fort Road. 
 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on May 
19, 2020, the Planning and Zoning unanimously recommended approval, and Staff 
concurs. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of North Wall Street Addition, a 
replat of Belton Original Town, Block 63, eastern half of Lot 5, comprising 
1.491 acres, to create five lots at 1000-1022 N. Wall Street, at the northwest 
corner of N. Wall Street and E. 10th Avenue, extending between E. 10th Avenue 
and the railroad tracks. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on May 
19, 2020, the Planning and Zoning unanimously recommended approval, and Staff 
concurs. 

 
9. Consider a final plat of Wheats Sweets Plaza, comprising approximately 3.0 

acres located at 3050 W. Hwy 190 Service Road and 1174 S. Wheat Road, near 
the northwest corner of the intersection of US190/I-14 and Wheat Road. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on May 
19, 2020, the Planning and Zoning unanimously recommended approval, and Staff 
concurs. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the Liberty Hill 

Lift Station Offload project, and any change orders associated with the 
contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under State law.  

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend award 
of the contract to Flanigan Construction as presented. 
 

11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to implement or continue various utility 
assistance programs for those City of Belton utility billing customers who 
have been seriously impacted by the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend authorization of the 
assistance programs as presented. 
 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 12, 2020 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in a virtual session via Zoom meeting due to the COVID-19 
Public Health Emergency that has been declared by Governor Greg Abbott, Bell County 
Judge David Blackburn and Belton Mayor Marion Grayson. Members present included 
Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter and Councilmembers David 
K. Leigh, John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson, Guy O’Banion and Dan Kirkley. Staff 
present included Sam Listi, John Messer, Amy Casey, Gene Ellis, Mike Rodgers, Wes 
Gilbreath, Cheryl Maxwell, Judy Garrett, Kim Kroll, Bob van Til, Paul Romer, Matt 
Bates, Chris Brown, Cynthia Hernandez and Angellia Points.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Mayor Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter 
and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Public Information Officer 
Paul Romer. The Invocation was given by Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:37)  
 

There were none. 
 

3. Presentation of Council pay for 2019-2020. (Audio 1:45) 
 
City Clerk Amy Casey presented each of the Councilmembers their pay of $1 for 
their service for the previous year. In light of the current circumstances, the dollar 
bills were folded in the shape of a COVID-19 face mask. 
 

4. Proclamations: (Audio 3:41) 
 

A. National Police Week – May 10-16, 2020 
 

Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis received this proclamation on 
behalf of the Belton Police Department. 
 

B. National Safe Boating Week – May 16-22, 2020 
 
Alvin Dillard, Flotilla Commander of the United States Coast Guard Auxiliary, was 
“present” to receive this proclamation. 
 

C. National Public Works Week – May 17-23, 2020 
 

Director of Public Works Angellia Points received this proclamation on behalf of 
the Belton Public Works Department. 

 
 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 12, 2020 – Page 2  
 

  

Consent Agenda (Audio 13:07) 
 
Items 5-13 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

 
5. Consider minutes of April 28, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 
6. Consider appointments to the Charter Review Committee. Brett Baggerly, 

Brandon Bozon, Dave Covington, Jeannie Pittman, Jane Dominguez, Alton 
McCallum, Daniel Bucher, Craig Pearson, Dan Kirkley and David K. Leigh. The 
Mayor selected Dave Covington to chair the committee. 
 

7. Consider appointments to the Art Selection Committee. 
• Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro Tem, City of Belton 
• Gene Ellis, Assistant City Manager/Chief of Police, City of Belton 
• Randy Pittenger, CEO, Belton Area Chamber of Commerce 
• Hershall Seals, Art Department Director, UMHB 
• Judy Garrett, CVB and Retail Coordinator, City of Belton 
• Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning, City of Belton 
• Steven Kirkpatrick, Realtor, Remax  
• Michelle Weaver, The Art Place 

 
8. Consider appointment/reappointments to the following Boards/ Commissions: 

A. Ethics Commission Mike Miller, Bert Peeples, Mark Fitzwater, Charla Peters, 
Larry Pointer, Craig Hammonds and Nicholas Rabroker. 

B. Planning and Zoning Commission Allison Turner, Ty Hendrick, Luke Potts, 
Stephanie O’Banion and Brett Baggerly. 

C. Central Texas Council of Governments Executive Committee Sam Listi was 
appointed as second alternate. 

 
9. Consider an application from Lone Star Express for an Operating Authority 

Permit to operate a charter service between Belton and Austin-Bergstrom 
International Airport. 

 
10. Consider a resolution denying Oncor’s application to the Public Utility 

Commission of Texas for approval of a Distribution Cost Recovery Factor. 
 
11. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 

illumination agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for 
lighting along Loop 121 as part of the Loop 121 Widening Project. 

 
12. Consider a resolution in support of the 2020 BUILD Grant application to the US 

Department of Transportation for improvements to S. Connell Street. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 12, 2020 – Page 3  
 

  

13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates for construction administration 
services for the E. Ave S and North East/E. 5th Ave Waterline Replacement 
Project. 
 

Councilmember Leigh asked that Item 11 be pulled for discussion.  
 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, Consent Agenda Items 5-10 and 12-13, including the following captioned 
resolutions, were approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, FINDING THAT ONCOR 
ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC’S APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL TO 
AMEND ITS DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY FACTOR TO INCREASE 
DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE CITY SHOULD BE DENIED; AUTHORIZING 
PARTICIPATION WITH ONCOR CITIES STEERING COMMITTEE; AUTHORIZING 
THE HIRING OF LEGAL COUNSEL AND CONSULTING SERVICES; FINDING THAT 
THE CITY’S REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY 
THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS 
PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE 
OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THEIR BETTER UTILIZING INVEST-
MENTS TO LEVERAGE DEVELOPMENT (BUILD) DISCRETIONARY TRANSPORTA-
TION GRANT PROGRAM FOR S. CONNELL STREET. 
 
A motion was made by Councilmember Craig Pearson to table Item 11 until the next 
Council meeting, or until such time as property owners. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Kirkley. The motion was approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 
FY2021 Budget 
 
14. Conduct a work session on FY2021 budget considerations and process, and 

receive input from Council on key policies and initiatives. (Audio 28:46) 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented a summary of proposed changes for 
the FY 2021 budget. He also reviewed the budget process and received input from 
Council (see Exhibit 1). 

 
15. Conduct a work session on FY2021 budget for the following funds: (Audio 

1:48:35) 



Belton City Council Meeting 
May 12, 2020 – Page 4  
 

  

A. Drainage Fund 
B. Public Works – General Fund 
C. Water & Sewer Fund 
 

A motion was made by Councilmember Pearson to table Item 15 until the next Council 
meeting. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter and was approved 
upon a vote of 7-0. 

 
There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:21 p.m. 

 
 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider authorizing the purchase and installation of HVAC units for City facilities as 
provided for in the HVAC Replacement Fund. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Summary Information 
 
The proposed HVAC replacement plan will replace 26 units in several different City facilities 
to include Fire Station #2, Police Station, City Hall, Finance Building, Library, Parks Office 
and the Harris Center. The units on the list to be replaced are 10 years old or older, with a 
majority of them being 15 years old or older. Several of the units are outdated and do not 
operate in an efficient or energy moderate manner. A majority of the units will be replaced 
by a two-stage system that will read humidity levels in the room and allow the system to run 
at a lower level to provide what the room needs based on system setting. The City received 
three quotes for the HVAC replacement plan from Rabroker, Rohde and Lochridge Priest. 
The City requested quotes as a total replacement package for all units versus replacing 
them all separately. This allowed the City to receive a reasonable quote from Rabroker that 
came in under the projected amount budgeted for this project. The company hired for the 
project will dispose of the old units that are being replaced. The City’s Building Maintenance 
Department will keep two units in its storage site for staff training purposes. 
 
FIRE STATION 2: 4 Units 
This building is currently dealing with humidity levels that get higher than normal. This was 
noted per the engineer report/analysis that was done in 2017 by “McKinstry Consulting 
Services”. The unit running the kitchen, day room, and conference room was changed out in 
January of 2018 with a 2-stage system, which has helped to dehumidify the area. We are 
requesting to change the next two systems out with 2-stage for this exact purpose. This will 
help with the humidity in these areas.  
 
POLICE STATION: 2 Units 
The outside condenser unit #2 is proposed for replacement being that it is currently an R22 
refrigerant-based unit. The R22 refrigerant has been discontinued and prohibited as of 
January 2020 by the EPA due to its harmful effects on the environment. We will replace this 
unit with a 2-stage unit that will take the approved refrigerant and operate more efficiently.  
 
CITY HALL: 2 Units 
The inside air handler #1 is proposed for replacement being that it is a 1997 model. These 
systems are currently horizontal units. This particular unit sits on top of another air handler 
and the return air is being blocked by the ductwork from the other unit (approximately 2-inch 



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3   
 

clear space). This causes the airflow to be very restricted and in turn causes the unit to work 
at a higher level than necessary. It will help with the overall office environment and system 
efficiency if we can accommodate more airflow. We will need to replace both units with up-
flow systems and reconnect to the ductwork. With this unit being replaced, we would also be 
able to eliminate the old humidifiers in the ducting, and eliminate the old heat kit that is 
currently being used in the ductwork. 
 
FINANCE: 2 Units 
This current system is a 1998 R22 system. As we mentioned with the police station unit 
being replaced, R22 refrigerant is now prohibited from being produced or imported by the 
EPA. We would install a 2-stage system here as well to go with the other 2-stage system 
that is currently in the building.  
 
PARKS OFFICE: 2 Units 
This current system is also an R22 system. The inside portion of this unit is a 1987 model 
and is in need of replacement due to wear and tear. The air handler is in poor and filthy 
condition, which causes the blower motor housing and ducts to discharge black dust. We 
are proposing replacing the system with a single stage unit (this building will eventually 
become a storage area not needing a 2-stage system) along with replacing the plenums 
and ductwork for a healthier environment while still occupying the building. 
 
HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER: 8 Units 
These units are 14-15 years old. The existing condenser units are a 2-stage compressor, 
and the furnaces are a single stage with a fixed-speed blower motor. We propose to replace 
these units with a complete 2-stage system for a better dehumidification environment. At 
this time, Unit #3 is malfunctioning periodically causing a short in the unit. This unit helps 
run the Evans Room. Unit #6 is currently not in working condition due to a damaged blower 
motor. We have had several issues in the past with blower motors on these units rattling 
and causing the wheels to break apart partly due to age. Units #1 and 2 are being proposed 
to be replaced due to age. 
 
LIBRARY: 6 Units 
Units 2, 3, and 5 are being proposed to be replaced due to being R22 refrigerant. The 
HVAC setup at the library is different from the other buildings. The library is equipped to 
start all blower motors at a low speed whenever one system is needed for cooling. This is 
done to keep airflow consistently moving throughout the building. Being that it is already 
setup in this manner, single stage equipment would suffice.  
 
Quotes were pursued from Rabroker, Rohde and Lochridge Priest, where Rabroker 
provided the lowest quote, which was a BuyBoard quote for $59,040 plus the $400 
BuyBoard fee. Purchases through BuyBoard meet all competitive bidding requirements. 
 
Fiscal Impact Amount: $59,440 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No Funding Source(s): HVAC Replacement Fund  



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Recommendation 
 
Authorize the purchase and installation of HVAC units for City facilities as provided for in the 
HVAC Replacement Fund. 
 
Attachments 
HVAC Quotes 















City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
     
Consider authorizing: 
 
A. the Belton Economic Development Corporation Executive Director to execute a contract 

for the purchase of 2.833 acres at 2238 W. Hwy 190; and 
 
B. a budget amendment to the FY 2020 budget in the amount of $165,000 for the purchase 

of property at 2238 W. Hwy 190. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Belton Economic Development Corporation – Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 
 
Summary Information 
 
The Belton Economic Development Corporation seeks to purchase 2.833 acres at 2238 W. 
Hwy 190, just south of the Belton Business Park. The acquisition of property will facilitate a 
vital segment of the proposed wastewater extension to IH-14, as the design calls for an 
alignment through the parcel from Digby Drive. Furthermore, the site could serve as an 
extension of Phase II of the Belton Business Park, offering an additional entrance as an 
option.  
 
Following months of negotiations, the BEDC has presented a contract, and the property 
owner has accepted, for the purchase of property at $160,000. The contract provides for a 
sixty-day inspection period with the closing to occur thirty days after the inspection period.  
Additionally, BEDC will cover all cost related to the sale of property. The executed contract 
is attached and is subject to City Council approval. The BEDC Board of Directors 
unanimously approved the contract on April 7, 2020.   
 
A budget amendment to cover the cost of purchasing the property will be needed, as funds 
were not allocated for the real estate transaction in the FY 2020 budget. As per the real 
estate contract, BEDC will pay for the land and all costs related to the closing for an 
estimated total of $165,000.   
 
BEDC’s cash balance in the operating fund is $1,199,647 as of March 2020. BEDC has 
sufficient funds in fund balance for the budget amendment. On May 19, 2020, the BEDC 
Board of Directors unanimously voted to authorize the budget amendment from fund 
balance in the amount of $165,000 to the Land account (505-4-501-8000) to cover these 
costs.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

BEDC seeks the City Council’s consideration in ratifying the contract as approved by the 
BEDC Board of Directors and authorization of the budget amendment in the amount of 
$165,000.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The purchase price, with closing costs, are estimated at $165,000 for 2.833 acres at 2238 
W. Hwy 190 and is not reflected in the BEDC FY 2020 budget.  
 
Amount: $165,000 
 
Budgeted:    Yes    No 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed  
Funding Source(s):  Fund Balance 
   
Recommendation 
 
The BEDC Board and Staff recommend City Council approval of the contract and related 
budget amendment for the purchase of 2.833 acres at 2238 W. Hwy 190 from Theresa 
Avila. 
 
Attachments 
Contract 
Property Exhibit 
 







































Subject Property
Property ID 71128 – 0.54 acres
Property ID 71121 – 2.29 acres



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
 
       Date:  May 26, 2020  
       Case No.: Z-20-09 

Request: Agricultural to Multi Family 
District 

       Applicant/Owner: Dolores Diskin 
  

Agenda Item #7 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to Multi-Family 
District on approximately 1.65 acres located at 6201 W. US 190 Service Road, on the south 
side of US 190, between US 190 and Dog Ridge Road, east of Fort Road. 
 
Originating Department: Planning Department – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Agricultural Proposed Zoning: Multi Family   
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Commercial/Retail with Commercial Corridor 
Overlay. 
 
Design Standards Type Areas 2 & 4:    
Area 2 (Western half of property): Primarily commercial highway frontage uses with 
opportunities for mixed uses, hotels, restaurants, new car dealerships, multi-story office, and 
other similar commercial uses. 
Area 4 (Eastern half of property): Primary intersections and cross roads of the I-35 and I-14 
(US 190) corridors; nodes projected for commercial, retail, and neighborhood service uses with 
a higher standard, as they are gateways to other areas.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This property was annexed into the City limits in 2006 and assigned the Agricultural Zoning 
District at that time. Two existing houses are onsite along with a building shell for a third 
structure. The applicant wishes to convert the shell into a third residence comprising 600 sq. 
ft. Since multiple houses will be onsite, a zoning change to Multi Family Zoning District is 
requested and will bring the use of this property into compliance with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
The applicant purchased this property in 1996. The three existing structures were onsite prior 
to annexation in 2006. The applicant has requested a building permit to remodel the shell 
building and convert it to an efficiency type apartment for lease. The other two houses are 
currently being leased as well. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3   
 

Surrounding properties in this vicinity are zoned Agricultural District except for property to the 
west, which is zone Commercial – 1 District with a Specific Use Permit for an Indoor Vehicle 
Parking Self Storage Facility. This tract is currently undeveloped. The adjacent property to the 
east is residentially developed; a mobile home park is located east of this residential tract. 
Property on the south side of Dog Ridge Road is outside the city limits and is undeveloped. 
Properties to the west along the US 190/I-14 frontage are mostly undeveloped with a few 
structures that are unoccupied.  
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
The requested Multi Family Zoning District, will allow any of the uses identified below: 
  

• Apartments (and related facilities) 
• Duplex and single family 
• Family home 
• Child care center 
• Nursing home 

 
Area & Setback Requirements 
Minimum area and setback requirements for the requested Multi Family (MF) Zoning District 
are summarized below. Single family homes constructed in the MF District are required to 
observe Single Family 3 (SF3) District standards, which are also shown below. 
 
Multi Family 

Lot Area: 10,000 sq ft; 2,420 sq ft/du     Front Yard: 25’ 
 Lot Width: 80’      Rear Yard: 20’ 

Lot Depth: 120’      Side Yard: 8’/15’ adjacent to street 
 
SF3 

Lot Area: 5,000 sq ft       Front Yard: 25’ 
 Lot Width: 50’      Rear Yard: 20’ 

Lot Depth: 90’      Side Yard: 5’/15’ adjacent to street 
 
 
All area requirements are satisfied. With regard to setbacks, a survey of the property was not 
available so the front yard setback observed by the two existing residential structures is 
uncertain. If there are any deficiencies, these structures are considered legal non-conforming 
structures and are allowed to remain in their current configuration and may be maintained, 
expanded, and replaced in compliance with Section 46 of the Zoning Ordinance—
Nonconforming Uses and Structures. The third residence (converted shell) will comply with 
these setback requirements, and any future buildings must do so as well. A subdivision plat is 
required if additional structures, beyond these three, are proposed.  
 
Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for retail and commercial 
use, with a commercial corridor overlay along I-14, and a projected Commercial Center to the 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3   
 

east, at the intersection of US 190/1-14 and George Wilson Road. Multi Family is considered 
an appropriate use within various categories identified with the FLUM to include Retail/ 
Commercial, Office, and Residential. The requested MF Zoning District is consistent with the 
FLUM and existing uses in this location, and brings the use of this property into compliance 
with the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Recommendation  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission met on May 19, 2020, and with a vote of 8-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of the zoning change from Agricultural District to Multi 
Family District; Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 
Attachments: 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Zoning notice to owners 
Owner notification list 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
General Site Plan 
Building Plan for shell conversion 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

























1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in a virtual session via Zoom meeting due to the 
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency that has been declared by Governor Greg Abbott, Bell County Judge 
David Blackburn and Belton Mayor Marion Grayson.   
 
The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Allison Turner, Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
David Jarratt, Ty Hendrick, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach Krueger. Quinton Locklin was absent. The 
following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Clerk Laura Livingston, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  

 
4. Z-20-09    Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Agricultural District to Multi-

Family District on approximately 1.65 acres located at 6201 W. US 190 Service Road, on the south 
side of US 190, between US 190 and Dog Ridge Road, east of Fort Road. (Audio 02:01) 
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report. (Exhibit A).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing; with no one requesting to speak, the public hearing was 
closed.  
 
Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve Z-20-09 as recommended by staff. Mr. Covington seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved with 8 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON 
BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO 
MULTI FAMLY DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 1.65  ACRES, WITH DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREAS 2 & 4 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Dolores Diskin, owner of the following described property has 
presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said 
petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition 
and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance 
and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission 
of the City of Belton was set for the 19th day of May, 2020, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and 
adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
Approximately 1.65 acres at 6201 W. Hwy 190 Service Road, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 

WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 
said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 26th day of May, 
2020, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said districts located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Agricultural District to Multi Family 
District, in accordance with Section 15–Multi Family Zoning District, and the Design 
Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of the property shall conform to the Multi Family Zoning District in all 

respects. 
2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 & 4 

Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards; 
b. Building Design Standards. 

 
This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City 

of Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 26th day 
of May, 2020, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 



 
SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 

26th day of May, 2020. 
 
 

 
__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT "A"



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
       Date:  May 26, 2020  
       Case No.: P-20-18  

North Wall Street Addition 
       Request: Replat 
       Applicant: Turley Associates, Inc. 
       Owner: Belton E. 10th LLC/Ken Harris  
 
Agenda Item #8 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of North Wall Street Addition, a replat of Belton 
Original Town, Block 63, eastern half of Lot 5, comprising 1.491 acres, to create five lots at 
1000-1022 N. Wall Street, at the northwest corner of N. Wall Street and E. 10th Avenue, 
extending between E. 10th Avenue and the railroad tracks. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Two Family (2F)   
    
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Residential 
 
Design Standards Type Area 6:  Projected as primarily mixed uses, and residential area with 
redevelopment. 
 
Case Summary 
 
This replat divides the property into five lots for duplex development. Four of the proposed lots 
are already developed with duplexes for a total of eight dwelling units. A duplex is proposed on 
the 5th lot as well, which is currently undeveloped. This property is located in the North Central 
Belton Historic District so any site improvements must be submitted to the city for review and 
approval. The duplexes are currently accessed by a private drive that runs along the west side 
of the property. A 25’ wide private access easement is shown on the plat, dedicated by a 
separate instrument. The property is zoned Two Family District so this division of land is a 
residential replat. Variances are being requested for ROW dedication and perimeter street 
improvements, so public notice and public hearings are required.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property is zoned 2F District. The proposed lots satisfy all area requirements for the 2F 
Zoning District as noted below: 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3   
 

Lot Area: 7,200 sq. ft./8,000 sq. ft. for corner lots 
Lot Width:  65’ 
Lot Depth: 100’ 
Front Yard: 25’ 
Side Yard: 8’/15’ adjacent to street; 20’ if garage entry 
Rear Yard: 20’   

 
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this 
subdivision plat. 
 
Water/Sewer: An existing 8-inch water line and a 6-inch sewer line run along Wall Street, 
providing service to the existing duplexes. These lines will be tapped to provide service to 
proposed Lot 5. The existing fire hydrant location satisfies minimum requirements for fire 
protection. 
 
ROW/Streets/Sidewalks/Drainage: The two perimeter streets—Wall Street and 10th 
Avenue—are local streets; a minimum 50’ ROW is required. Wall Street currently has 48’ ROW 
and 10th Avenue has 42’ ROW. The applicant is required to dedicate half of the ROW deficit 
for each street. A variance is requested, and supported by staff, since this replat will result in 
one additional building site for infill development, because four of the five lots are already 
developed.  
 
Regarding perimeter street improvements, the Subdivision Ordinance requires the developer 
to provide street improvements, if needed, for the portion of roadway adjacent to this plat 
boundary. A minimum pavement width of 31’ is required for local streets, with curb/gutter. In 
this case, there are two adjacent roadways—Wall Street and 10th Avenue. Both of these streets 
have a pavement width of 27’. Wall Street has curb/gutter, but 10th Avenue does not. The 
applicant is requesting a variance to this requirement and it is supported by staff, since this 
replat will result in only one additional building site (2 dwelling units) for infill development.  

No sidewalks are required with this replat since the adjacent streets are all local streets. 
Minimal impact, if any, is anticipated with the development of one additional duplex; therefore, 
no drainage infrastructure is needed.  

Parkland Dedication/Fees: The parkland fee is $200 per residential unit, or $400 for the two 
addition dwelling units (duplex) that will be constructed on Lot 5. These funds are due at the 
time of plat signatures and may be used in Beall Park or Heritage Park, both within 1 mile of 
the subdivision.  
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the replat and find it acceptable as a final plat. The plat is 
administratively complete as of May 19, 2020, subject to approval of requested variances. 

Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on May 19, 2020, and with a vote of 8-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of the final plat of North Wall Street Addition, subject to 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3   
 

approval of variances to the ROW dedication and perimeter street improvement requirement 
for Wall Street and 10th Avenue; Staff concurs with their recommendation.   
 
Recommend hold public hearing and approve replat. 
 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Variance Requests 
Replat Notice to Owners 
Owner Notification List 
Map with Replat Notice Boundary (200’) 
Administratively Complete Letter to the Applicant dated May 19, 2020 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 





P
A

G
E

#

DRAWING NUMBER:

JOB NUMBER:

COMPUTER FILE NAME:

DATE:

DRAFTSMAN:

REFERENCE DRAWING NUMBERS:

REVISIONS

© TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC.

0
1

DATE DESCRIPTION
DFTR

5-19-2020















           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
May 19, 2020 
 
Project: NORTH WALL STREET ADDITION 
Applicant: TURLEY & ASSOCIATES 
Date Submitted:  4-6-20 
   4-29-20 
   5-7-20 
   5-11-20 
   5-19-20 – Lot line Adjustments 
Location:  1.49 ACRES and 1000-1022 N WALL STEET 

 
*** 5/19/2020 - ADMINISTRATIVELY COMPLETE, subject to conditions below.  *** 

 
PLANNING: 

1. Subject to City Council Approval: 
a. Variance requests received for ROW dedication and perimeter street improvements for 

North Wall Street and East 10th Avenue; staff will recommend approval. 
b. No trees may be removed without approval of a site clearing permit. 
c. Parkland fee of $200 due at time of plat signatures. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS/KPA:  

No further comments 
FIRE DEPT: 

No Comments 
BUILDING OFFICIAL: 
 Comments. 
  
POLICE DEPT: 
 Comments. 
GIS: 

No comments. 
 
Outside Utility Provider Comments 

Oncor:  
AT&T:   
Atmos Energy:  
Charter Communications:  
Grande Communications:  
Spectrum (Time Warner):  
USPS:  
Clearwater UCD:  
TXDOT: 

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 



1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in a virtual session via Zoom meeting due to the 
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency that has been declared by Governor Greg Abbott, Bell County Judge 
David Blackburn and Belton Mayor Marion Grayson.   
 
The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Allison Turner, Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
David Jarratt, Ty Hendrick, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach Krueger. Quinton Locklin was absent. The 
following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Clerk Laura Livingston, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  

 
5. P-20-18   Hold a public hearing and consider a final plat of North Wall Street Addition, a replat 

of Belton Original Town, Block 63, eastern half of Lot 5, comprising 1.491 acres, to create 5 lots 
at 1000 – 1022 N. Wall Street, at the northwest corner of N. Wall Street and E. 10th Avenue, 
extending between E. 10th Avenue and the railroad tracks. (Audio 09:12) 
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report. (Exhibit B) 
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing; with no one requesting to speak, the public hearing was 
closed.  
 
Ms. O’Banion made a motion to approve P-20-18 as recommended by staff. Mr. Jarratt seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved with 8 ayes, 0 nays.  



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3   
 

 
Staff Report – City Clerk Agenda Item 
 
 
       Date:  May 26, 2020  
       Case No.: P-20-19  

Wheats Sweets Plaza 
       Request: Final Plat 
       Applicant: Turley Associates, Inc. 
       Owner: John Ricciardi   
 
Agenda Item #9 
     
Consider a final plat of Wheats Sweets Plaza, comprising approximately 3.0 acres located at 
3050 W. Hwy 190 Service Road and 1174 S. Wheat Road, near the northwest corner of the 
intersection of US190/I-14 and Wheat Road. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Commercial-2 and Retail Districts  
    
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Commercial/Retail with Commercial Corridor 
Overlay transitioning to Lifestyle Center to the west. 
 
Design Standards Type Area 4: Primary intersections and cross roads of the I-35 and I-14 
(US 190) corridors; nodes projected for commercial, retail, and neighborhood service uses with 
a higher standard, as they are gateways to other areas.  
 
Case Summary 
 
This plat reconfigures the exiting two tracts to generally match the zoning boundaries that were 
approved April 28, 2020, with Commercial – 2 zoning on Lot 1 and Retail zoning on Lot 2. 
International Motors Auto Repair Service is currently operating on Lot 1; Lot 2 is undeveloped 
at this time. This plat would qualify for administrative approval, except that a variance is 
requested to the minimum water flow requirement of 1,000 gpm for fire protection; since this 
property is inside the Belton City limits, it does not qualify for admin approval.  
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Proposed Lot 1 comprises 0.996 acres and is zoned Commercial – 2 District. Proposed Lot 2 
comprises 2.046 acres and is zoned primarily Retail District with a small strip adjacent to Lot 1 
(approximately 34’ wide) zoned Commercial - 2. The lot configuration was intended to match 
the rezoning boundaries but minor adjustments occurred during the rezoning approval process 
resulting in this slight offset. There is no problem leaving the boundaries as they are and the 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3   
 

applicant has opted to do so, rather than go through the rezoning process to adjust the zoning 
line. The proposed lots satisfy all area requirements for these Zoning Districts as follows:  
 
Retail: 
 Lot Area: 7,000 sq. ft.  Front Yard Setback:  25’ 
 Lot Width: 60’    Rear Yard Setback:  20’ 
 Lot Depth: n/a’    Side Yard Setback:  25’  
 
Commercial - 2: 
 Lot Area: 5,000 sq. ft.  Front Yard Setback:  20’ 
 Lot Width: 50’    Rear Yard Setback:  15’ 
 Lot Depth: 100’    Side Yard Setback:  15’/20’ adjacent to street 
 
No new buildings are proposed at this time. If any new buildings are constructed, they must 
comply with these setback requirements, and requirements for a certificate of occupancy to 
include all applicable building and fire codes, requirements for parking, signage, and utility 
requirements.  
 
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this 
subdivision plat. 
 
Water: This property lies with the Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation (DRWSC) Certificate 
of Convenience and Necessity (CCN). DRWSC has an existing 6” water line along the US 
190/I-14 frontage and currently serves Lot 1 with domestic water supply. They will provide 
another tap/meter on this line to serve Lot 2 with water for domestic use. However, with an 
estimated flow rate of 120 gpm, DRWSC is unable to meet the minimum 1,000 gpm water flow 
required for fire protection. 
 
North of this property, DRWSC and City of Belton (COB) have a dual CCN. COB has an existing 
fire hydrant approximately 85’ from the northeast corner of Lot 2 that meets the required 
minimum flow for fire protection. Therefore, future building(s) on Lot 2 will be within 400’ of the 
fire hydrant, which meets the requirement for fire protection; however, the existing structure on 
Lot 1 is outside this minimum distance. As a result, the applicant is requesting a variance to 
the minimum 1,000 gpm flow requirement for Lot 1. This is supported by staff for the existing 
structure. However, any future development or change in use on Lot 1 will be required to meet 
these minimum fire protection requirements. 
 
Sewer: A 6” sewer line is existing near the northeast corner of Lot 2. The owner of the adjacent 
property to the south—Holden’s Wheat Road Addition—is extending the 6” sewer line 
southward to the northeast corner of his property to provide service to his lot. Once this is 
completed, this public sewer line will be available for the applicant to tap to provide sanitary 
sewer service to Lot 2. A building permit for Lot 2 may be issued after this sewer line is in place 
and available for tapping.  
 
The existing building on Lot 1 is currently served by an existing septic system, and is allowed 
to continue to do so, subject to regulations of the Bell County Public Health District. Due to 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3   
 

topography, this lot cannot be served by the 6” sewer line unless a grinder pump/lift station is 
installed. If installed in the future, the grinder pump/lift station will be privately owned and 
maintained. 
 
Drainage: Site drainage will be addressed with the building permit application, since there is 
an existing structure on Lot 1, and development plans are undetermined at this time for Lot 2.  
 
ROW/Streets/Sidewalks: Wheat Road is a major collector street on the City’s Thoroughfare 
Plan which requires a minimum 80’ ROW with a 37’ pavement width, with curb and gutter. 
These requirements are satisfied with 92’ ROW and approximately 38’ pavement width with 
curb/gutter. US 190/I-14 is a TxDOT roadway; no additional ROW is requested and perimeter 
street improvements are not applicable.  

Our Subdivision Ordinance currently requires a 5’ sidewalk along both sides of collector streets 
and 6’ on both sides of arterial streets. There is an existing 10’ wide sidewalk along the west 
side of Wheat Road, adjacent to this subdivision, so this requirement is already satisfied for 
this plat. A 6’ wide sidewalk is required along the US 190/I-14 frontage and is the applicant’s 
responsibility with this plat. Construction of the sidewalk will be required with a building permit 
request for either Lot 1 or Lot 2, whichever is developed first.  

Parkland Dedication/Fees: n/a for commercial developments. 
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable as a final plat. The plat is 
administratively complete as of May 12, 2020, subject to approval of the requested variance 
for fire protection for Lot 1. 

Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on May 19, 2020, and with a vote of 8-0, 
unanimously recommended approval of the final plat of Wheats Sweets Plaza, subject to the 
conditions below; staff concurs with their recommendation: 
 

1. approval of variance to the minimum 1,000 gpm water flow for fire protection for Lot 1, 
for the existing structure; and  

2. any future development or change in use on Lot 1 will be required to meet these 
minimum fire protection requirements. 

 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Variance request 
Administratively Complete Letter to the applicant dated May 12, 2020 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
 















1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, May 19, 2020 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in a virtual session via Zoom meeting due to the 
COVID-19 Public Health Emergency that has been declared by Governor Greg Abbott, Bell County Judge 
David Blackburn and Belton Mayor Marion Grayson.   
 
The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Allison Turner, Dave Covington, Luke Potts, 
David Jarratt, Ty Hendrick, Stephanie O’Banion and Zach Krueger. Quinton Locklin was absent. The 
following staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, Planner Tina Moore, Planning 
Clerk Laura Livingston, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  

 
6. P-20-19    Consider a final plat of Wheats Sweets Plaza, comprising approximately 3.0 acres 

located at 3050 W. Hwy 190 Service Road and 1174 S. Wheat Road, near the northwest corner of 
the intersection of US190/I-14 and Wheat Road. (Audio 14:14) 
 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report. (Exhibit C) 
 
Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve P-20-19 as recommended by staff. Ms. O’Banion seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved with 8 ayes, 0 nays.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #10 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the Liberty Hill Lift Station 
Offload project, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the 
amount authorized under state law.  
     
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Summary Information 
 
In September 2019, the South Belton Sewer Phase I project was fully completed. Halff 
Associates designed the sewer line along Loop 121 so that the Liberty Hill Lift Station could 
be taken offline, in the future, assuming easements were granted from property owners 
between Loop 121 and Liberty Hill Drive. The Liberty Hill Lift Station is a small, problematic 
lift station that only serves the Liberty Hill Subdivision off of Holland Road/FM436.  
 
In May 2019, the Royal Heights Subdivision plat was approved by Council. This plat 
included a drainage and utility easement for the purposes of creating a drainage channel 
and a path for this future sewer line to offload the lift station. However, to offload the lift 
station, an easement was still needed from the adjacent property owner, owned by Priscilla 
Farr, between Royal Heights and the lift station.  
 
Public Works reached out to the realtor for the Farr property to discuss the project and 
granting of an easement. The Farr property was having difficulties selling partly due to the 
fact the parcel was not serviced by sewer. The City’s plan to offload the lift station would 
provide direct sewer service to the Farr property. Along with the sewer extension and lift 
station offload, the Public Works Department saw an opportunity to improve the drainage 
channel between Royal Heights and Liberty Hill Drive. There is not a defined drainage 
channel between Liberty Hill Drive and the new Royal Heights channel, which causes 
ponding on the Farr property. Also, a new drainage channel would help the drainage 
situation upstream in the Liberty Hill subdivision. With a sewer extension and creation of a 
drainage channel, the property owner granted an easement to the City in February 2020.   
 
The Director of Public Works/City Engineer designed the sewer extension and lift station 
offload in-house. The channel design was partly analyzed by KPA in 2018 with the Liberty 
Hill Drainage Study. Therefore, KPA designed the drainage channel within this Farr property 
easement for the project. The project is called the Liberty Hill Lift Station Offload project, but 
it does include the proposed drainage channel as well. The engineer’s estimate of 
construction was $280,000. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
 

The project design was completed in February 2020. The bid opening was scheduled for 
March 24, 2020, but the County’s stay-at-home order was issued around that time, so the 
bid opening was delayed. Staff rescheduled the bid opening to May 5, 2020, and performed 
a virtual public bid opening process. Five (5) bids were received for the project, as shown in 
the following table.  
 
Contractor      Bid Amount    
Wolff Construction, Salado    $172,509.42 
Bruce Flanigan Construction, Belton  $209,209.90 
Bell Contractors, Belton    $239,038.84 
JKB Construction, Liberty Hill   $255,255.55 
TTG Utilities      $356,707.50 
 
The Director of Public Works/City Engineer and the Assistant Director of Public Works 
evaluated the bids received. The low bidder was Wolff Construction of Salado, Texas. The 
Director of Public Works spoke with the representatives from Wolff to confirm their bid 
prices, since they were over $100,000 lower than the engineer’s estimate, and some items 
received a $0 bid price. Staff was told that one item was bid at $0 because they did not 
receive a quote from a subcontractor, and therefore put $0 instead of an estimated amount. 
There were numerous errors in Wolff’s bid items, as noted in the bid tab. As allowed for in 
the contract documents, a list of items can be requested of the Contractor by the City to 
verify their capability and availability to perform the proposed work. Staff requested Wolff’s 
list of equipment and references for projects over the last five years. Wolff did not submit the 
requested data, but instead formally requested to withdraw their bid on May 20, 2020. Staff 
recommends approval of the withdrawal without forfeiture of their bid bond. 
 
The second low bidder was Bruce Flanigan Construction of Belton, Texas. Flanigan 
Construction’s last project for the City of Belton was the Lake-to-Lake Road Waterline 
project in 2014. Although the City of Belton has not worked with Flanigan Construction 
recently, they have worked with many developers on subdivision utilities, including Liberty 
Valley, Creekside Estates, and Stoney Brook. Flanigan Construction’s bid was reasonable 
with no issues, and they have the capabilities and quality of work to successfully construct 
the Liberty Hill Lift Station Offload project. 
 
The time allocated for construction is 120 working days, or about 6 months.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impact of the action for this item is $209,209.90 plus any unforeseen change 
orders. The funding for the project is allocated in both the Water & Sewer Capital Funds and 
Drainage Capital Funds.  
 
Amount: $209,209.90 
 
Budgeted:  Water & Sewer Capital Funds and Drainage Capital Funds 



City Council Agenda Item 
May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Bruce Flanigan Construction, Inc. for 
the construction of the Liberty Hill Lift Station Offload project, and any change orders 
associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under State law.  
 
Attachments 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation  
Bid Tabulation 
Wolff Construction’s Request to Withdraw 
 











From: Angellia Points
To: Amy Casey
Subject: Fwd:
Date: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 5:02:10 PM

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Bryan Wolff <bryan@wolffconstructiontexas.com>
Date: May 20, 2020 at 5:01:20 PM CDT
To: Angellia Points <APoints@BeltonTexas.Gov>
Cc: Cole Wolff <cole@wolffconstructiontexas.com>, Lane Wolff
<lane@wolffconstructiontexas.com>, "zacv@wolffconstructiontexas.com"
<zacv@wolffconstructiontexas.com>


Angela,
It is with deep regret that I ask to pull our bid on the Liberty Hill project, I do so
appreciate the City allowing us to pull our bid without penalty, I will make sure and do
my due diligence on any future bids and hope that this does not cause any issues with
us bidding work in the future
Thank You
Bryan Wolff
WARNING:
This
message
is from
an
EXTERNAL
email
source.
DO NOT
open
attachments
or click
links
from
unknown
senders
or
unexpected
email.
Contact
Belton IT
support
for
assistance
if

mailto:APoints@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:ACasey@BeltonTexas.Gov


LIBERTY HILL LIFT STATION 
OFFLOAD PROJECT
BID AWARD



LIBERTY HILL LIFT STATION OFFLOAD PROJECT
• September 2019: South Belton Sewer Phase I project was completed. Halff Associates designed the sewer line along Loop 121 

so that the Liberty Hill Lift Station could be taken offline.

• Liberty Hill Lift Station is a small, problematic lift station serving only the Liberty Hill subdivision. 

• Royal Heights Subdivision plat was approved by Council, and included a drainage and utility easement. However, easement 
was needed from Farr property to offload the lift station. 



Liberty Hill Lift Station Offload Project 

• Farr Property

• Drainage channel between Royal Heights and Liberty 
Hill Drive

• Easement received

• Sewer line designed in-house

• Drainage channel designed by KPA 



Bid Summary

• The design was completed in February 2020. The project was bid on May 5, 2020. 
• 5 bids were received. 
• The engineer’s OPCC was $280,000.
• Funding for project: Water & Sewer Capital Projects + Drainage Capital Projects.

Contractor Base Bid

Wolff Construction, Salado $172,509.42

Flanigan Construction, Belton $209,209.90

Bell Contractors, Belton $239,038.84

JKB Construction, Liberty Hill $255,255.55

TTG Utilities $356,707.50



5

• Staff evaluated the bids received. 

• Low bidder was Wolff Construction – many bid irregularities.

• Wolff Construction requested to withdraw bid.

• The second low bidder is Bruce Flanigan Construction. 

Bid Award Recommendation 



Authorize a contract with Bruce Flanigan Construction, Inc. for the 
construction of the Liberty Hill Lift Station Offload project, and any change 
orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized 

under State law. 

Recommendation



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to implement or continue various utility assistance 
programs for those City of Belton utility billing customers who have been seriously impacted 
by the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Background 
 
1. Credit Card/Convenience Fee 

 
As the COVID-19 Pandemic began to emerge and affect our citizens in late March 2020, 
we requested, and the Council approved, elimination of the 4% credit card fee and the 
$1.25 convenience fee for all City of Belton online payments. This action amended the 
City’s Fee and Rate Schedule, typically for utility bills, court fines and building permits, 
from March 24 until at least September 30, 2020, the end of the current fiscal year. We 
will be evaluating these fees as part of the FY 2021 budget process to determine 
whether they should be reinstated, and whether the amount charged is appropriate and 
in fact increases the use of online payments. 
 

2. Utility Payment Plan Policy Development 
 

Also on March 24, 2020, we advised the Council that we would work with utility billing 
customers who may need some extra time to pay utility bills due to the effects of the 
pandemic. Utility bill cutoffs due to non-payment were suspended indefinitely for 
residents.  
 

• We propose to extend this no cutoff practice for residential accounts for 90 
additional days, to August 31st.  

• For a delinquent bill, we recommend a 7-month payment plan, until December 
2020. 

• We ask residents in need to come in and meet with City of Belton Utility Staff, and 
establish a payment plan to take advantage of these options. 

• Generally, we would expect the current monthly bill to be paid, so as not to fall 
further behind. 
 

We recognize that we cannot outline every alternative, so we simply ask the Council to 
give us some flexibility to work out these arrangements in our mutual interest. We will 
report to Council monthly on implementation of these flexible payment plans. 



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 2 of 3   
 

3. Utility Assistance Policy 
 

The balance of this memo will outline a proposed arrangement with the United Way of 
Central Texas to administer a Utility Assistance Policy, a grant program for residents 
who have been seriously affected by the pandemic. 
 
The extended duration of the COVID-19 Pandemic resulted in discussions between 
UWCT and area cities and businesses regarding ways to deliver relief to our most needy 
citizens. Stephanie O’Banion, Executive Director of United Way of Central Texas, 
developed a concept proposal for how the United Way proposes to serve as an objective 
conduit for relief. The UWCT would receive applications for assistance, utilize criteria 
established by each entity, and make a prompt decision on eligibility. UWCT would then 
send payments directly to the entity. Funds for assistance would come from a variety of 
sources – donations, participating agencies, and the Federal CARES Act. Finally, UWCT 
would take no administrative fee for this generous community service. Clearly, UWCT 
offered the Region and our individual citizens an amazing gift, and we believe it is in our 
interest to participate. 
 
We propose to provide $10,000 from the City’s Water and Wastewater Fund to UWCT 
for this limited purpose of funding Belton utility assistance for those residents in serious 
need of help. (Other larger cities in the area that are CDBG eligible, and who received a 
direct additional CARES ACT allocation as a result, are extending this support to rent 
payments and small business support.) 
 
Eligibility requirements include, but are not limited to: 
 

• City of Belton Resident and City of Belton Utility Customer; 
• Assistance request is for a residential utility account, not a business; 
• Application for assistance should be completed with needed background provided 

on household size, household income, and utility bill deficiency; 
• Complete applications will be submitted to UWCT, and the goal is for prompt 

review and decision; 
• The application will be approved or denied, the applicant will then be notified and, 

if approved, payment will be made directly to the City from UWCT; 
• The $10,000 allocation is suggested based on these assumptions: 

Assuming three months of no utility payments – April, May and June – and an 
outstanding City of Belton utility bill of $200, this Assistance Program could help 
around 50 households. Certainly, program funding could be supplemented if 
needed and desired by Council as we implement this plan. 

 
We are very appreciative to Stephanie O’Banion and the United Way of Central Texas 
(UWCT), for this partnership offer to help Belton in this unique way. Given the unusual 
conditions, we believe it is appropriate to authorize this partnership. 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
 May 26, 2020 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Fiscal Impact: $10,000 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No Funding Source(s): Water and Wastewater Fund 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend authorization of the assistance programs as presented. 
 
Attachments 
City of Belton/United Way of Central Texas COVID-19 Recovery Fund Summary 
Community Relief Fund Application 



The COVID-19 Response & Recovery Fund is available to help meet the immediate needs of individuals 
and families directly impacted by this pandemic. 

CRITERIA: 

• Individuals/families must have been actively employed at the time of the COVID-19 pandemic, and are
now experiencing income loss as a direct result of the shutdown

• One application per household
• One time only granted assistance
• All documents listed below must be presented
• Applicant must live in Bell County

DOCUMENTS NEEDED: 

• Government Issued Photo ID
• Completed COVID-19 Application
• Completed COVID-19 Employment Verification Form
• February Paycheck Stub and Paycheck stub from last 30 days
• Lease Agreement/Mortgage Statement
• Current Utility Bill

TIMELINE/PROCESS 

• Completed application received by UWCT
• Application reviewed and decision made within 5 business days
• Higher fund requests may be subject to additional approval and require more time
• Payment made directly to the vendor.  No payments made directly to the applicant.
• Applicant receives approval documentation with confirmation of payment to vendor

Submit Completed Application to: 

covidrelief@uwct.org 

LIMITED FUNDS AVAILABLE! 

Please contact covidrelief@uwct.org with any questions. 

about:blank
about:blank


UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL TEXAS 
COVID-19 Community Relief Fund 

Application for Individual/Family Assistance 

Please select assistance requested: Housing____ City Utilities____ Other Utilities____ Other____ 
Referral for other services ____ 
How did you hear about the UWCT COVID-19 Fund?_______________________________________ 

Documents Needed:

• ID
• Completed COVID-19 Application
• Completed form to Verify Current (or most recent) Employment Status

(attached)
• February Paycheck Stub and Paycheck stub from last 30 days
• Lease Agreement/Mortgage Statement (Housing assistance only)
• Current Utility Bill (Utility assistance only)

PERSONAL INFORMATION 

Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ________________________________  Email: _________________________________________

# of people in household:________  Ages:_________________________________________ 

Weekly Household Income before COVID-19: $__________  

Weekly Household Income today: $____________ 

Employment:  Must have employer name & contact information from the job affected by COVID-19.  

Company: ______________________________________   How long employed: _____________________ 

Supervisor Contact Name: ________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: __________________________________ Email: ________________________________________ 

Impact of COVID-19 to Employment: 

Reduction of hours:____________ Laid Off: ___________ Terminated:___________________  



________________________________________ Date: ____________________Please allow up to 5 business days for application review and processing. All applications are subject 
to approval and funds available. 

Send completed application with supporting documentation to Covidrelief@uwct.org 

HOUSING ASSISTANCE REQUEST 

Leasing Agent/Mortgage Company: ________________ Phone:___________________

Address:____________________________________________________

Manger/Landlord Name: _____________________________________ Email: __________________

Name on Lease or Mortgage: ______________________________ Monthly Amount: $ ____________

Have you missed any payments? _______________ If yes, how many and the total fee: $__________

Do you have any late fees:   __________________ Total amount owed: $ _________________________

Are you able to make a partial payment? _______ How much? $__

UTILITY ASSISTANCE REQUEST: (Includes City water bills) 

Utility Company or City Utilities: ________________________________________________________

Address: ______________

Name on Bill: ___________________________________________________________

Have you missed any payments? ____________________ Do you have any late fees: _____________

Current Bill Amount: $______________ Amount Past Due: $__________

Are you able to make a partial payment? ______    If yes, how much? $ _________________

Other Assistance Requested (i.e. Child Care, Car Payment, Prescriptions, Other Household Bills) 

Please explain request and amount requested: _______________

Have you received assistance for COVID-19 from another source:  __

If Yes, from where? ____________ How Much? $_______________________
______________________________________________________
I hereby certify that the information and statements made on this form and all information furnished 
in support of the application for assistance are true and correct to the best of my belief and 
knowledge. I agree to give United Way of Central Texas any information necessary to prove statement 
about my eligibility. I furthermore give United Way of Central Texas permission to contact my 
employer, benefit provider, or creditors to verify information I have provided to establish my 
eligibility. I understand that this application will be considered without regard to race, color, religion, 
creed, national origin, or political belief. I understand if granted assistance it is a ONE TIME ONLY 
GRANTED ASSISTANCE. 

Send completed application and required attachments to covidrelief@uwct.org
All  applications are subject to approval and funds available. 

Please allow up to 5 business days for application review and processing. 

_____________

______________

__ 

 _ 

 _ 

  

_____________________

_______________________________________________________________

______________ 

__

_______________ ___________

__________

____________________________

____

__________________
_______________________

Applicant's Signature: __________________________________________  Date: __________________

___ 

___ 

__________

_______ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Applicant Signature: 



UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL TEXAS 
COVID-19 Community Relief Fund 
Employment Status Verification 

Today’s Date: ______________________ 

This statement is to confirm that _____________________________ is/was employed at 

______________________________. He/She worked full-time hours of _______ per week or part-

time hours of ______ per week at $___________per hour. 

The frequency of payment was: 

_______weekly _______bi-weekly _______semi-monthly ________monthly 

Status of employment due to COVID - 19 as of today’s date: ______________ 

_______ Change in employment was not related to COVID-19 

_______ Reduction of Hours 

_______ Laid Off 

_______ Terminated 

_______ Other 

Other explanation: _________________________________________________________________

Company Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Employer Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Signature of Employer:_______________________________________________________________ 

Title:______________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________                  

_____________________________________

_____________________________________

Phone: _______________________________


	Agenda - 052620
	City Manager's Memo
	#4 - Minutes - 051220
	#5 - Staff Report - HVAC
	#5 - Attachments

	#6 - Staff Report - BEDC Land Purchase
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - Rezoning 6201 W US 190 Service Road
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Final Plat N Wall St Addition
	#8 - Attachments

	#9 - Staff Report - Final Plat Wheats Sweets Plaza
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - Liberty Hill LS Offload
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Utility Payment Assistance
	#11 - Attachments


	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 
	11: 
	12: 
	13: 
	14: 
	15: 
	16: 
	17: 
	18: 
	19: 
	20: 
	21: 
	22: Off
	23: Off
	24: Off
	25: 
	26: 
	27: 
	28: 
	29: 
	30: 
	31: 
	32: 
	33: 
	34: 
	35: 
	36: 
	37: 
	38: 
	39: 
	40: 
	41: 
	42: 
	43: 
	44: 
	45: 
	46: 
	47: 
	48: 
	49: 
	50: 
	51: 
	52: 
	53: 
	54: 
	55: 
	56: 
	57: 
	58: 
	59: 
	60: 
	61: 
	62: 
	63: 
	64: 
	65: 
	66: 
	67: 
	68: 
	69: 
	70: 
	71: 
	72: 
	73: 
	74: 
	75: 
	76: 
	77: 


